
Wednesday, January 21, 2026, at 6:00PM 
Transportation Building 

3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon 

 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Monthly Meeting 
 

 

 
 

 



Next regularly scheduled meeting to be held February 18, 2026 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS – REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 

Agenda: Wednesday, January 21, 2026 @ 6:00pm 

REGULAR MEETING 
1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call
4. Announcements, Changes to Agenda, Agenda Approval
5. Public & Guest Comments
6. Executive Session: None

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 
7. Financial and Grant Reports (November) (Pgs. 1-30)
8. Service Performance Reports (November) (Pgs. 31-36)
9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (Pgs. 37-39)
10. NW Rides Brokerage Report (December) (Pgs. 40-42)
11. General Manager Report (Pgs. 43-48)

a. Administration/Coordination
b. Planning/Development
c. Grant Funding
d. Facility/Property Management
e. Operations/Vehicle Maintenance

12. Miscellaneous

CONSENT 
13. Motion to Approve the Minutes of December 17, 2025, Regular Board Meeting (Pgs. 49-53)
14. Motion to Approve November 2025 Financial Statements
15. Motion to Approve the TCTD FY 2026-27 Budget Calendar (Pg. 54)
16. Motion to Appoint GM Brian Vitulli as FY 2026-27 Budget Officer

ACTION ITEMS 
17. Resolution 26-01 In the Matter of Amending the TCTD Administrative Staffing Plan by 

Establishing a Brokerage NEMT Credentialing Specialist Position for NW Rides (Pg. 55)
18. Resolution 26-02 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 3 to 

ODOT Grant Agreement Number 35328 (Pgs. 56-64)

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
19. Staff Comments
20. Board of Directors Comments
21. Adjournment

UPCOMING EVENTS 
2026 SDAO Annual Conference, February 6-8, Seaside, OR 

To attend by phone, please dial: +1 (253) 215-8782   Meeting ID: 880 8898 5392 
To attend virtually, please use this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88088985392 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/880


1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



TCTD Operations
Statistics & 
Performance
November 2025

31



YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE

36482

3377 3618

34103

3288 3575

IN-COUNTY DEVIATED FIXED ROUTE INTERCITY DIAL-A-RIDE

RAW PASSENGER COUNTS

Nov-25 Nov-24

32



IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE
YTD COMPS

17089

1047

11246

4325

1640 1135

15971

1187

10943

4815

1187 0

RT 1 (TOWN LOOP) RT 2 
(NETARTS/OCEANSIDE)

RT 3 (CANNON BEACH) RT 4 (LINCOLN CITY) RT 6 (PORT LOOP) PC SHUTTLE

Nov-25 Nov-24

33



DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE
YTD COMPS

1752

866

1548

2027

TILLAMOOK COUNTY PROGRAM

Nov-25 Nov-24

34



PASSENGER CATEGORIES
YTD COMPS

313

1048

362

3545

493

839

328

801

235

3390

315 0

RIDE CONNECTION TILLAMOOK BAY 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

NWOTA VISITOR PASS YOUTH FREE AMTRAK BICYCLES

Nov-25 Nov-24

35



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT November 2025

RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE Nov Nov YTD YTD YTD %

2025 2024 FY 25-26 FY 24-25 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service

Tillamook County 344 265 1,752 1,548 13.2%

Program 195 284 866 2,027 -57.3%

Dial-A-Ride Total 539 549 2,618 3,575 -26.8%

Deviated Fixed Route Service

Rt 1: Town Loop 3,150 2,820 17,089 15,971 7.0%

Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 184 183 1,047 1,187 -11.8%

Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 1,809 1,772 11,246 10,943 2.8%

Rt 4: Lincoln City 686 795 4,325 4,815 -10.2%

Rt 6: Port of Tillamook Bay Loop 252 173 1,640 1,187 38.2%

Pacific City Free Shuttle 0 0 1,135 0 100.0%

Local Fixed Rt Total 6,081 5,743 36,482 34,103 7.0%

Intercity Service

Rt 5: Portland 554 460 3,377 3,288 2.7%

Inter City Total 554 460 3,377 3,288 2.7%

TOTAL ALL SERVICES 7,174 6,752 42,477 40,966 3.7%

ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP (Allocated)

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

USER GROUP Route DAR FY 25-26 FY 24-25 Change

General (18 years to 60 years of age) 3,981 86 23,653 23,096 2.4%

Senior/Disabled 2,190 431 14,873 15,070 -1.3%

Child/Youth 464 22 2,815 2,800 0.6%

Total 6,635 539 41,342 40,966 0.9%

OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 25-26 FY 24-25 Change

Ride Connection 40 313 328 -4.6%

Tillamook Bay Community College 223 1,048 801 30.8%

NWOTA Visitor Pass 17 362 235 54.0%

NW Rides 123 526 N/A N/A

Youth Free 532 3,545 3,390 4.6%

Amtrak 43 493 315 56.5%

Bicycles 118 839 N/A N/A

36



Coordinating Committee In-Person Meeting 
January 9, 2025 | 10:00a - Noon 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
3600 3rd Street, Tillamook OR 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259 

Call In: 1 253 215 8782 
Meeting ID: 875 5229 0259 

Agenda 

10:00- 
10:05a  Introductions Cynda Bruce 

10:05 -
10:30a 

 Consent Calendar 
December Meeting Minutes   
Financial Report  
Emissions/Ridership Tracking 
Bus Stop Project Update 

 
Cynda Bruce/All 

10:30- 
10:40a 

NWConnector Enhancements Implementation 
• Survey Responses All 

10:40- 
10:45a 

2026 NWOTA President  Cynda Bruce/All 

10:45- 
11:20a Pre-planning New Website Development 

Logan Hoffman 
MAC 

11:20- 
11:50 2026 NWOTA Work Review & Approval  All 

11:50-
12:00p Member Updates All 

Attachments: 
December Meeting Minutes  
Ridership/Passenger Mile Tracking 

Meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities.  If 
a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Sarah Lu Heath at 971.328.2877 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

37

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259


NWOTA Meeting Minutes 
December 12, 2026  

The meeting was held virtually. In attendance: David Carr, Cynda Bruce, Cody Franz, Sarah 
Lu Heath, Arla Miller, Jillian Trinkhaus, Brian Vitulli and Chris Wheatley.   

During the introductions, Jillian Trinkhaus shared an update regarding Benton Area Transit 
with the group. The NWOTA facing position will be moving to the County and a job posting 
for the open position will be posted in January. Until the job is filled, it is likely that Gary 
Stockhoff will be the representative attending NWOTA meetings. 

Regular Items:  
October meeting minutes and the Connector Performance calculator were reviewed. 

Bus Stop Update: TCTD expects to review the 30% design plans with Jacobs Engineering in 
December. The stop in Hebo will be redesigned to ensure the construction and facilities 
remain only in the public right-of-way. This redesign will result in a stop that includes two 
seats and a solar powered light.  

Acceptance of regular items was moved by Brian Vitualli and seconded by Chris Wheatley. 
It passed unanimously.  

Northwest Connector Enhancements: 
TCTD will use CARES Act funding to hire MAC to update the shelter maps, visitor passes, 
and related print materials. The group was reminded a needs-survey was sent out to 
determine print volume.  

Visitor Passes usage, pricing, and tracking was discussed. Cynda Bruce made a motion to 
update Visitor Pass fare structure to offer only 7 Day Passes at $30 per pass. Brian Vitulli 
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  

The group also discussed NWConnector Route timing and how some trips are offered on 
the website. EG: the nwconnector.org interactive map routes an Astoria to Yachats trip 
through Portland. Further investigation and discussion is warranted.  

STIF Amendments & Rural Veterans Healthcare Transportation Grant: 
Arla Miller shared information and answered questions regarding both of these programs. 
At this time, it is expected that the increase in the Statewide Transit Tax will not be collected 
in calendar year 2026 as a voter referendum is expected.  

Both TCTD and SETD submitted letters of interest to the Rural Veterans Healthcare 
Transportation program. The formal application period is expected to open in early 2026. 

38



2026 NWOTA Work Plan 

The group reviewed a draft work plan submitted by Sarah Lu Heath for the 2026 calendar 
year. Several minor changes were discussed. The updated draft will be provided for final 
review and adoption at the January board meeting.  

Member Updates: 

ODOT: Arla reminded folks that the federal Department of Transportation will be reviewing 
compliance for federal pass-through funding with agencies across the state.  

TCTD: Brian shared that recently hired drivers are performing well and several have been 
trained for their Class B CDL licenses.  

SETD: Several drivers have left the district giving SETD the opportunity to hire a new cohort. 
They are seeing high quality applicants and are working on hiring full and part time drivers 
to build a bullpen to better manage sick and vacation leave.  

SETD is working with Clatsop Community College to provide free fare passes for students 
and the City Councils to develop emergency response agreements.  

The meeting adjourned at 12:08pm. 

39



NW Rides Trips Provided

NW Rides 2025

51,540

21,532

6,752

Providers

MR

Volunteers 2025 Total Trips= 79,644

40



NW Rides 2025

1,099,574

864,140.40

341,050.60

Providers

MR

Volunteers

NW Rides Miles Driven

2025 Total Miles Driven= 2,304,765

41



NW Rides Call Center

ANSWERED 52,108 Calls
4 CSR’s ≈ 13,027 calls per person

≈ 203 calls per business day

NW Rides 2025

257 Working Days

42



Tillamook County Transportation District 
  “Connecting the community through sustainable transit services” 

3600 Third St. Ste A, Tillamook OR  97141  (503) 815-8283  Fax (503) 815-8005 
www.tillamookbus.com 

DATE: January 21, 2026 

TO: TCTD Board of Directors 

FROM:  Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER REPORT  

Administration/Coordination 

• Nominated for the Business of the Year Community Award to be presented on Saturday,
January 24, 2026 at the Tillamook Chamber Community Awards Banquet! (See attachments 1
& 2.)

• Working with community partners and employment agencies/employee placement
organizations to recruit transit drivers.

• Attended Oregon Transit Association Board on January 6. I was elected to be Board President
for the 2026-2028 term.

• Attended NWOTA meeting on January 9. I was elected to be NWOTA President.
• Attended Oregon Transit Association Conference Program Committee meeting on January 14

to begin planning for November 2026 Oregon Public Transportation Conference in Seaside.
• On January 20, attended the Mornings on Main gathering hosted by the Tillamook Chamber.
• Attended the ODOT Region 2 Transit Roundtable on January 15.
• Interview with OPB reporter on December 17 regarding the transportation bill and the

potential referendum’s impact on service and planned projects. Provided statement to
Portland media following Governor’s call to repeal HB 3991.

• On January 13, 2026, attended a meeting of the House Interim Committee on Transportation
and spoke on behalf of the Oregon Transit Association and transit providers statewide, to
support Legislative Concept 257 (LC 257) which will be presented as a bill to the Oregon
Legislative Assembly during the 2026 Regular Session. LC 257 calls for the establishment of a
‘Transit Funding Task Force to determine funding level needed to maintain adequate transit
service statewide and to allow for growth over time and to explore funding mechanisms
necessary to achieve necessary funding.’ 21 members shall be appointed by the Governor,
Senate President, and Speaker. It would direct the Task Force to develop and submit a report
to transportation committees by December 2026.

• On December 9, recorded the Rural Routes to Zero: Electrifying Transit Across Northwest
Oregon webcast with consultant team as part of the GFT | Insights program. See
bit.ly/4oOhU8j to view.

43

https://bit.ly/4oOhU8j


P a g e  | 2 

3600 Third St. Ste A, Tillamook OR  97141  (503) 815-8283  Fax (503) 815-2834 
www.tillamookbus.com 

Planning & Development 

• Finalizing the scope of work for the procurement package of the Transit Development Plan.
Intending for RFP to be released within the next month, and firm selection and contracting
completed in March. Project is funded with a $180,000 federal planning grant.

• Work on the NW Connector Bus Stop Access Project is continuing. This project includes final
design and permitting for three locations (Pacific City, Hebo, Waldport), and a NEPA analysis
of the Hebo location. The project will then proceed with construction with completion
expected in October 2026.

Grant Funding 

• A Letter of Intent (LOI) was submitted to ODOT’s Public Transportation Division on November
10 for continued RVHT (Rural Veterans Health Transportation) funding. Based on the LOI,
ODOT may choose to award funds to preservation projects directly. If not, full applications will
be required by late December 2025 / early 2026.

• Two applications for funding were submitted to the SDAO’s Safety and Security Grant Program
for additional security cameras and a new fire alarm system for the Administration and
Vehicle Maintenance buildings.

• The purchase and installation of bus stop infrastructure at six locations on U.S. 101 in
Garibaldi has been granted approval by ODOT’s Permitting Office. Sign-off by the local
municipality has occurred. Products have been ordered and are awaiting delivery.

Facility/Property Management 

• Transit Center exterior / platform cleaning occurs weekly and on an as-needed basis.
• Fire alarm system upgrade project for the Administration building and Vehicle Maintenance

facility is continuing.

Operations/Vehicle Maintenance 

• Implemented systemwide service enhancements on Sunday, January 18, 2026! The District
has restored all transit service that was temporarily discontinued in March and May of 2024
due to the shortage of available drivers. It has also added more trips to Routes 2 and 6 and
expanded Dial-A-Ride capacity throughout Tillamook County. This has been a monumental
effort involving numerous components and could not have been accomplished without the
entire District team! The communities in our District once again have transit service seven
days a week! (See attachments 3 & 4.)

44



45



46



and New Service
Times!!!

TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Service Improvements!!!
Beginning Sunday January 18th, 2026

1-800-815-8283

www.TillamookBus.com

nwconnector.org

Follow us at: Facebook/Tillamookbus

• Reinstatement of seven day a week transit service

• 40% more trips on Route 2 (Netarts-Oceanside)
and Route 6 (Port of Tillamook Bay)

• Added Dial-A-Ride capacity
• Overall 25%+ service hours increase!
• Direct Route 3 service to the new

Nehalem Bay Health Center in Wheeler

• Reinstatement of the 4:55 AM Route 5 roundtrip
to/from Portland (transfer to TriMet’s Red Line at
Sunset Transit Center in Beaverton for car-free
travel to PDX)

47



and New Service
Times!!!

TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

7 DAY SERVICE!!!
Coming January 18th, 2026

ROUTE 2
ROUTE 3
ROUTE 4
ROUTE 5

&
ROUTE 6

NEW ROUTE
TIMES FOR

1-800-815-8283
www.TillamookBus.com

nwconnector.org

Follow us at: Facebook/Tillamookbus 48



Regular Meeting December 17, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting 
Wednesday, December 17, 2025 – 6:00PM  
Transportation Building 
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR  
Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order:   Board Chair Bean called the meeting to order at 6 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present 
TCTD Board of Directors 
Gary Hanenkrat, Director  
Marni Johnston, Treasurer 
Jonathan Bean, Chair 
David McCall, Director  
Vern Ressler, Director 

Absent 
TCTD Board of Directors 
Nan Devlin, Director 
Eric Sappington, Director 

TCTD Staff 
Brian Vitulli, General Manager  
Charlene Pech, Finance Supervisor  
Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent (via Zoom) 
Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk 

Guest  
John Cline, Citizen 

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda

GM Vitulli presented on behalf of the District, a holiday gift to the Board members and
thanked everyone for their support.

Motion by Director McCall to Approve Announcements and Changes to Agenda.
Seconded by Director Hanenkrat.

Motion Passed 
By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler, 

Hanenkrat, Johnston, McCall 

49



Regular Meeting December 17, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

5. Public & Guest Comments:

John Cline made a public comment that the gentleman that did the Board Director
training at the November meeting showed what goes into being a Director, and wanted
to thank them for what they do. Thanked Brian and the staff that the District is going
in a good direction.

6. Executive Session: None.

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 

7. Financial and Grant Report: Financials for October 2025 are included in the Board
packet pages 1-22.

8. Service Performance Reports: Statistics for October 2025 are included in the Board
packet pages 23-28.

Director Mcall asked if last year and current year is comparable. GM Vitulli stated yes.

9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: Updates for November 2025 are included in the
Board packet pages 29-31.

10. NW Rides Brokerage: Statistics for September 2025 are included in the Board packet
page 32-34.

11. General Manager Report: Updates included in Board packet pages 35-36 (see GM
Report in packet for details):

a. Administration/Coordination
b. Planning Development
c. Grant Funding
d. Facility/Property Development
e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance

Director Bean asked where the Hebo stop was located. GM Vitulli stated that it is 
northbound on U.S. 101 at the Three Rivers Village Mobile Home Park and S Hebo 
Lane. Director Ressler stated that there is nothing at that location now, so good job. 

12. Miscellaneous

FS Pech stated that there are signature cards for Columbia Bank to be signed after
the Board meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR 

13. Motion to Approve the Minutes of November 19, 2025, Regular Board Meeting

Motion by Director McCall to Approve the Minutes of November 19, 2025, Regular
Board Meeting. Seconded by Director Johnston.

50



Regular Meeting December 17, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

Motion Passed 
By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler, 

Hanenkrat, Johnston, McCall 

14. Motion to Approve October 2025 Financial Statements

Motion by Director McCall to Approve October 2025 Financial Statement. Seconded
by Director Johnston.

Motion Passed 
By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler, 

Hanenkrat, Johnston, McCall 

ACTION ITEMS 

15. Resolution 25-32 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment
Number 5 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 34225

Director McCall asked why there is a difference in grant dollar amount on June 20, 
2020, to current grant amount. GM Vitulli stated it is what is remaining on the grant.

Motion by Director Johnston to Approve Resolution 25-32 Authorizing the General 
Manager to Execute Amendment Number 5 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 
34225. Seconded by Director McCall.

Motion Passed 
By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler, 

Hanenkrat, Johnston, McCall 

16. Resolution 25-33 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment
Number 4 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 34242

Motion by Director McCall to Approve Resolution 25-33 Authorizing the 
General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 4 to ODOT Grant Agreement 
Number 34242. Seconded by Director Hanenkrat.

Motion Passed 
By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler, 

Hanenkrat, Johnston, McCall 

17. Resolution 25-34 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment
Number 2 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 35606

Motion by Director McCall to Approve Resolution 25-34 Authorizing the 
General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 2 to ODOT Grant Agreement 
Number 35606. Seconded by Director Ressler.

Motion Passed 
By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler, 

Hanenkrat, Johnston, McCall 

51



Regular Meeting December 17, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

18. Updated Policy Development List

GM Vitulli stated that as discussed at last month’s Board meeting, Director McCall
mentioned that there were several policies that have old effective dates on them.
Policies are current but will continue to collaborate with counsel for updates. Director
Johnston asked if the draft check-in/check-out reporting policy was new. GM Vitulli
stated that it has been on the policy list for some time but it is not an active policy, and
it will be struck from the list.

19. Staff Comments

General Manager Vitulli: As stated last month, Director McCall asked for an update of
House Bill 3991 and the referendum on the upcoming ballot. GM Vitulli stated that the
Department of Revenue on Monday announced that the collection of new taxes in
2026 will be paused, due to an adequate number of required signatures that were
collected in order to create a referendum to suspend the gas tax increase, vehicle fee
hikes, and employee payroll tax increase for transit. Need to have bipartisan efforts to
find sustainable funding solutions before the 2026 election. Oregon voters in 2026 will
decide and will likely be rejected. House Bill 3991 only provided for a two-year
increase of employee payroll tax, so agencies are left to prioritize one-time
improvements rather than service increases.

GM Vitulli stated that with additional bus drivers hired and trained, the next shift bid
happening in January will allow the District to reestablish seven-day a week service,
as well as add back the discontinued services that were reduced in March and May
2024, including more trips for Route 2 and Route 6. Director Hanenkrat asked if all
routes will operate seven-day service. GM Vitulli stated yes and added that an
additional roundtrip for Route 5 to Portland will be included. Thank you for your
patience and your support.

Admin Assistant Brown: None.

Finance Supervisor Pech: None

Operations Superintendent Reed: None.

20. Board of Directors’ Comments

Dir. Hanenkrat: None.

Dir. Devlin: Absent.

Dir. Ressler: Looking forward to the ride to Lincoln City.

Dir. Sappington: Absent.

52



Regular Meeting December 17, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

Dir. Johnston: Happy Holidays everyone and know it has been a couple of bumpy 
years but must thank GM Vitulli for hanging in and appreciate everyone for their 
support.  

Dir. McCall: Thank everyone for showing up in the weather we are having and with all 
the road closures happening. Glad to hear that none of the buses are stuck or in harms 
way. Tip of the hat to the drivers and to the people helping the drivers to make sure 
that drivers and passengers are safe. General Manager Vitulli stated that OS Reed 
and OC Scott are up incredibly early in the morning checking weather reports and 
tides to make sure that drivers can get through. 

Chair Bean: Good news that we are going to be able to get back to seven-day service. 
Enjoy your holiday and be safe. GM Vitulli let everyone know about the Holiday Party 
tomorrow from 10am to 2pm. 

21. Adjournment: Board Chair Bean adjourned the meeting at 6:51pm.

These minutes were approved on this 21st of January 2026. 

ATTEST: 

Jonathan Bean, Board Chair      Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

53



Tillamook County Transportation District 
Budget Calendar 
FY 2026 – 2027 

January 21, 2026 @ 
Board Meeting 
February18, 
2026 @ Board 
Meeting 
March 11, 2026 
March 18, 2026 
@ Board Meeting 

March 18, 2026 

March 17, 2026 
(due 3/11/26) 

March 31, 2026 
(due 3/25/26) 

April 8. 2026 
@ 6:00pm 

April 28, 2026 
(due 4/22/26) 

May 20, 2026 
@ Board Meeting 

June 26, 2026 

June 26, 2026 

June 26, 2026 

Appoint Budget Officer 
Appoint New Budget Committee Members (if necessary) 

Review Draft Budget with Treasurer 

Distribute Draft Budget to Board 

Distribute Draft Budget to Budget Committee 

Publish 1st Notice of Budget Committee Meeting (no more than 30 days prior to 
meeting.) The Notice must contain the date, time and location of the first budget 
committee meeting scheduled for receiving the proposed budget, hearing the budget 
message, and taking questions and comments from the public. Notice will be posted 
in the newspaper and on the District’s website. Notice must contain website address. 
Publish 2nd Notice of Budget Committee Meeting (no less than 5 days prior to 
meeting.) The Notice must contain the date, time and location of the first budget 
committee meeting scheduled for receiving the proposed budget, hearing the budget 
message, and taking questions and comments from the public. Notice will be posted 
in the newspaper and on the District’s website. Notice must contain website address. 
Budget Committee Meeting Present budget message and comprehensive outline 
of the proposed 2026-2027 budget. Public comment will be taken. Next 
budget meeting (if necessary) will be scheduled at this meeting. 
Publish Notice of Budget Hearing & LB-1 (No more than 30, no less than 5 days 
prior to budget hearing.) At the same time you publish the budget summary, you must 
also publish a notice of the budget hearing. The hearing notice gives the place and 
time of the hearing (ORS 294.438, renumbered from 294.416). The same publication 
methods described for the notice of budget committee meeting are used: Unlike the 
notice of budget committee meeting, if the hearing notice is by newspaper, only one 
publication is required and there is no internet publication option. The Notice must 
include Forms LB-1. 
Budget Public Hearing Hold public hearing on the budget as approved by the 
budget committee. Expenditure adjustments, if any, are restricted to $5,000 or 10%, 
whichever is greater, of the amount approved for each fund by the budget committee. 
Board adopts budget by resolution to appropriate funds and impose and categorize 
taxes. 
Deadline to Certify the 2026-27 Tax Levy to the County Assessor. Deliver two 
copies each of the Tax Certification LB-50 form & Resolution Adopting the Budget. 

Deliver a complete Budget document to Tillamook County Clerk Office. 
Resolution only unless requested by Clerk’s office. 

Submit final document to ODOT. Email to: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov 
*Please note that

bolded action items are 
required by budget law 

54



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
 
In the Matter of Amending    ) 
the TCTD Administrative ) 
Staffing Plan by Establishing a ) 
Brokerage NEMT Credentialing ) 
Specialist Position for NW Rides               )     RESOLUTION NO. 26-01 
  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors for the Tillamook County Transportation District 
has the authority to authorize employee positions; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board seeks to authorize employee positions which most 

efficiently and effectively staff the District’s administrative functions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District wishes to amend the TCTD Administrative Staffing Plan 

by establishing a Brokerage NEMT Credentialing Specialist position; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is concurrently necessary to adjust the wages and salary ranges for 

the NW Rides Office Assistant position; and, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 
District Board of Directors: 

 
1. The Board authorizes the amendment of the TCTD Administrative Staffing Plan to 

include a Brokerage NEMT Credentialing Specialist position. 
 
2. Effective February 1, 2026, the Board establishes the following compensation 

schedule for the Brokerage NEMT Credentialing Specialist and NW Rides Office 
Assistant positions: 

 
Position  Salary/Wage Range  
Brokerage NEMT Credentialing Specialist $18.00 to $25.00 
NW Rides Office Assistant  $18.00 to $25.00  

 
3. The General Manager of the District shall take all steps necessary to implement 

this Resolution. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January, 2026. 
 
ATTEST: 
 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Jonathan Bean, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

55



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
 

 
Authorizing the General Manager  ) 
to Execute Amendment Number 3 ) 
to ODOT Section 5339 Grant  ) 
Agreement Number 35328  )     RESOLUTION NO. 26-02 
  
 

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) has received 
a grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation (“ODOT”) under Section 5339 of 
the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended, for expansion vehicle purchase, design, 
shelter, and construction of the Hebo Bus Stop, and Downtown Transit Center 
Renovation; and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 30, 2022, the District entered into ODOT Grant Agreement 

No. 35328, memorializing a grant in the amount of $508,000; however, for Amendment 
Number 1, this only pertains to the expansion vehicle purchase grant amount of $340,000; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the District and ODOT mutually desire to extend the grant period 

expiration date from June 30, 2026 to June 30, 2027 to allow for the delivery of two Class 
B trolley-replica buses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors wishes to authorize the General 

Manager to execute Amendment Number 3 to extend the grant period expiration date 
from June 30, 2026 to June 30, 2027 to allow for the delivery of two Class B trolley-replica 
buses. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 

District Board of Directors: 
 
that the General Manager is hereby authorized to accept and execute Amendment 

Number 3 to ODOT Grant Agreement No. 35328 in the amount of $340,000 on behalf of 
the Tillamook County Transportation District, to extend the grant period expiration date 
from June 30, 2026 to June 30, 2027 to allow for the delivery of two Class B trolley-replica 
buses. 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2026. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Jonathan Bean, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

56



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 35328

Version 3
Capital   5339

 

Page 1 of  8

AMENDMENT NUMBER 3
ODOT GRANT AGREEMENT NO. 35328

Tillamook County Transportation District

The State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred 
to as State, and Tillamook County Transportation District, hereinafter referred to as Recipient, 
entered into an Agreement on August 30, 2022, Amendment 1 (one) on March 5, 2025, and 
Amendment 2 (two) on May 6, 2025. Said Agreement is to secure financial assistance to complete 
the activities described in Exhibit A.

It has now been determined by State and Recipient that the Agreement referenced above, although 
remaining in full force and effect, shall be amended to extend the Agreement period and revise 
Exhibit A. 

Page 1, Agreement, Paragraph 1, which reads:

1.Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2022 or the date 
when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless otherwise 
terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project Costs 
incurred on or before June 30, 2026. No Grant Funds are available for any expenditures after 
the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this Agreement shall end as 
provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

Shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

1.Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2022 or the date 
when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless otherwise 
terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project Costs 
incurred on or before June 30, 2027. No Grant Funds are available for any expenditures after 
the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this Agreement shall end as 
provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

Exhibit A shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the attached Revised Exhibit A. 
All references to "Exhibit A" shall hereinafter be referred to as "Revised Exhibit A."

57



Page 2 of  8

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35328
 
This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all of which
when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding
that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Amendment so
executed shall constitute an original.

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

58



Page 3 of  8

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35328
Version 3
 
Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its
 
 
By  
(Legally designated representative)

 
Name  
(printed)

 
Date  
 
By  
 
Name  
(printed)

 
Date  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

 
By  
Recipient's Legal Counsel
 
Date  
 
 
Recipient Contact:
Brian  Vitulli
3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 815-8283
bvitulli@tillamookbus.com
 
State Contact:
Arla Miller
355 Capitol St NE, MS43
Salem, OR 97301-4179
1 (503) 949-5415
Arla.MILLER@odot.oregon.gov

 State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation
 
By  
Suzanne Carlson
Public Transportation Division Administrator
 
Date  
 
 
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

 
By Arla Miller

 
Date 01/12/2026

 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $250,000)

 
By  
Assistant Attorney General
 
Name Sam Zeigler by email
(printed)

 
Date 07/15/2022

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov

59



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35328

 

Page 4 of  8

Revised Exhibit A

Project Description and Budget
 
Project Description/Statement of Work  
 
Project Title: 5339 Tillamook County Transportation District 35328
Purchase two (2) trolleys.

FTA funding Category A. Project ready to execute or has been executed. Funds available for
reimbursement.

 

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
P-21-1824-01 Item #1: Bus Trolley STD

$400,000.00 $340,000.00 $60,000.00 Local
Sub Total $400,000.00 $340,000.00 $60,000.00

 

Project Title: 5339 Tillamook County Transportation District 35328
Design and construct Hebo Bus Stop

FTA funding Category B. Project identified not ready to execute. Funds not available until the
FTA concurs in writing that the environmental review process is complete, FTA grant execution,
and subgrant agreement revision to release funds for reimbursement.

 

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
P-21-1825-01 Item #1: Passenger Shelters

$135,000.00 $108,000.00 $27,000.00 Local
Sub Total $135,000.00 $108,000.00 $27,000.00

 

Project Title: 5339 Tillamook County Transportation District 35328
Downtown Transit Center Renovation

Project Completed. Funds Exhausted. 
 

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
P-21-1826-01 Item #1: Terminal, Bus

$75,000.00 $60,000.00 $15,000.00 Local
Sub Total $75,000.00 $60,000.00 $15,000.00

 

Grand Total $610,000.00 $508,000.00 $102,000.00
 

 
The requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and all other applicable
federal environmental laws (e.g., the Endangered Species Act, the Clean Water Act, the National
Historic Preservation Act) apply to all projects that receive FTA funds (directly or through
the State). The process of addressing compliance with NEPA and all other applicable federal
environmental laws is referred to as the environmental review process. For any project receiving
FTA funds, subrecipients are responsible for coordinating with ODOT prior to incurring any costs
or conducting any project-related activities to confirm requirements for complying with the
environmental review process. The subrecipient is responsible for submitting all documentation
required to comply with the environmental review process to ODOT for approval by the FTA.

The following activities cannot proceed until the FTA concurs in writing that the environmental
review process is complete per 23 CFR 771.113(a)(1): 
- final design activities (design beyond 30%).
- property acquisition (includes purchase discussions with property owners that imply or are
explicitly binding).
- purchase of construction materials (including EV chargers and bus shelters) or rolling stock, 
- project construction activities (including construction, alteration, or repair [including dredging,
excavating, and painting] of buildings, structures, or other real property). 

Proceeding with any of these activities prior to FTA concurrence that the environmental review
process is complete may deem the entire project ineligible to receive federal funding.

60



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35328

 

Page 5 of  8

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Vehicle Expansion
Purchase 2 transit trolley vehicles as follows: useful life - 10 years and 350,000 miles;
approximate length - 35 feet; estimated number of seats - 25-35; estimated number of ADA
securement stations - 2; fuel type - diesel. 

Purchase includes all equipment and supplies necessary to put the vehicles into service. 

Hebo Bus Stop Design, Shelter, and Construction
This Agreement provides funding to design purchase and construct, approximately one bus
passenger shelter, located at 45.229375, -123.863025 including one bus route sign including
sign posts, and the following amenities: benches, trash receptacles, bike rack, bike repair
station, and infrastructure to comply with ADA accessibility requirements to support the
public transportation needs of the general public and seniors and individuals with disabilities.
The purpose of the project is to provide shelter from weather, procure and install passenger
amenities such as benches, bike racks, bike repair station for the comfort and convenience of
riders, and procure and install signage for transit route information.

Eligible expenses are: associated services, permits, permissions, and equipment, infrastructure
needed to put the passenger shelter, route sign, benches, trash receptacles, bike rack, bike
repair station, and infrastructure into service; costs incurred from the procurement process;
delivery charges; and post-delivery inspections. Architecture, design, engineering, planning,
and preparation services and permits, clearly needed to proceed with the project, are eligible
reimbursable expenses. 

A Documented Categorical Exclusion worksheet or Categorical Exclusion worksheet must be
submitted to State, and must be approved by the Federal Transit Administration for all federally-
funded projects, prior to any ground disturbance. This award is contingent on approval of
the worksheet. Any project expenses incurred will not be reimbursed if the project's required
worksheet is not approved. 

Downtown Transit Center Renovation

Renovate a transit facility located at 204 Laurel Avenue, Tillamook, Oregon 97141 to support the
transportation needs of the general public, seniors, and individuals with disabilities. The purpose
of the facility is for dispatch and customer service offices, customer waiting area, customer
information center, wall mounted electronic current route and schedule information to enhance
access to public transportation.

Facility Construction and Installation of Amenities and Equipment: Associated services and
equipment clearly needed to put the facility into service, costs incurred from the procurement
process, delivery charges, and post-delivery inspections are included in the reimbursable
expenses associated with this Agreement.

Architecture, Design, Engineering, Planning, and Preparation: Associated services and permits
clearly needed to proceed with the project are included in the reimbursable expenses associated
with this Agreement. 

2. PROJECT DELIVERABLES, SCHEDULE and USE

Vehicle Expansion
All purchases and installations must be completed prior to the expiration date of this
Agreement. 

RFP/IFB Issue Date July 1, 2025
Contract Award Date July 31, 2025
Initial Delivery Date October 31, 2025
Final Delivery Date April 30, 2027
Contract Completion Date June 30, 2027

61



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35328

 

Page 6 of  8

For vehicles procured using State Price Agreement contracts managed by the Oregon
Department of Administrative Services, all vehicle orders will be reviewed and approved by
State prior to submission to selected vendor. State is responsible for submitting vehicle orders
to selected vendor. If Recipient does not purchase from the State Price Agreement contracts
managed by the Oregon Department of Administrative Services, Requests for Proposals to
procure the vehicles must be reviewed by State prior to solicitation for bids. All vehicle orders
will be reviewed by State prior to submission to the selected vendor.

This Agreement provides funding to purchase passenger transportation vehicles to be used to
provide public transportation service. Public transportation service is defined as service to the
general public or special populations such as seniors and individuals with disabilities. Recipient
may use the vehicles to coordinate public and human service transportation services with other
agencies. Recipient will not lease the vehicles to another agency without the permission of State.

State will retain title to the vehicles as primary security interest holder as long as the vehicles
remains in public transportation service. Recipient must request permission from State to release
title for disposal when planning to sell or transfer a vehicle which has exceeded the minimum
useful standard for age or mileage, and must notify State when actual disposal has been
completed. Recipient must request permission from State in advance to transfer or otherwise
dispose of a vehicle prior to its meeting federal useful life standards. Recipient must request
permission from State to release title for changes. 

Recipient will create and maintain a vehicle maintenance plan that utilizes the original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) requirements for each vehicle and meets FTA transit asset management
requirements in 49 CFR 625. Recipient will follow the plan to ensure each vehicle is maintained
in a state of good repair. Recipient will provide State a copy of the plan upon request. 

Hebo Bus Stop Design, Shelter, and Construction

Recipient will submit a description and list for shelter location. Recipient will submit certification
attesting to fulfillment of any applicable permitting, inspections, or other requirements prior to
final payment. An on-site inspection or photo documentation of installations is required prior to
final payment.

By accepting federal or state funds, Recipient certifies that the project will meet all Americans
with Disabilities Act requirements as set forth in 49 CFR parts 27, 37, and 38.

All purchases, installations, and construction must be completed prior to the expiration date of
this Agreement. If an extension for time is required, a request must be received by State at least
45 days prior to the expiration date.

Prepare Categorical Exclusion January 15, 2026
Estimated FTA Concurrence March 31, 2026
RFP/IFB Issue Date July 1, 2025
Contract Award Date July 31, 2026
Initial Delivery Date October 31, 2026
Final Delivery Date April 30, 2027
Contract Completion Date June 30, 2027

Downtown Transit Center Renovation

Recipient will submit a site plan and a narrative describing the proposed project, as well
as a map or drawing showing placement of any signs, and other structures included in the
project. Recipient will submit certification attesting that all applicable federal, state and local
environmental and regulatory permitting requirements have been met. The certification shall
include a list of applicable environmental documentation and permits, permitting or regulatory
authority, and date of acceptance or approval. This list includes but is not limited to land use
and building permits, inspections, and occupancy permits, as applicable.  Either an on-site visual
walk-through by State staff or photos of installations must be provided. These deliverables must
be completed prior to final payment.

Recipient will hire a professional project manager as part of the project, if current staff does

62



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35328

 

Page 7 of  8

not have experience in managing complex construction projects. Project management costs are
eligible for reimbursement in this Agreement.

Recipient agrees to update and maintain a facilities maintenance plan compliant with FTA Transit
Asset Management rules 49 CFR part 625. Facilities Maintenance plan shall include, but not
be limited to, all major components of the facility and the associated maintenance schedules
for those components. Recipient shall supply State with the facility maintenance plan upon
request.  

By accepting federal funds, Recipient certifies that the project will meet all Americans with
Disabilities Act requirements as set forth in 49 CFR parts 27, 37, and 38.

3. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCHING FUNDING

Vehicle Expansion
Eligible expenses that may be charged to this Agreement include grant administration, the
cost of the procurement process, delivery charges and post-delivery inspections. Aftermarket
equipment, graphics and other items directly associated with these vehicles and required to put
the vehicles into service are eligible. Purchase of an extended warranty is an eligible expense;
however, the eligible warranty shall not exceed the defined useful life of the vehicles. Licensing
and other post-delivery expenses are not eligible for reimbursement. 

Recipient will provide matching funding from non-federal source(s). Sources of funding that
may be used as matching funding for this Agreement include Special Transportation Formula
Funds, local funds, service contract revenue, advertisement income, other earned income, cash
donations, and other verifiable in-kind contributions that are integral to the project budget.
Recipient may not use passenger fares as matching funding.  

Recipient will subtract income from fares, tickets, and passes whether pre-paid or post-paid,
from the gross operating expenses of the service. Under this Agreement, State will bear the sum
remaining after the amount of Recipient's required share of local matching funds is subtracted
from the total project expenses. Recipient may not count the same costs twice if they have
multiple agreements for which these costs may be eligible. 

Hebo Bus Stop Design, Shelter, and Construction

The service provider may use capital items funded under USDOT- or State-source agreements
when performing services rendered through a contract or sub-agreement funded by this
Agreement. Depreciation of capital items funded under USDOT- or State-source grants is not an
eligible expense.

Eligible matching fund sources for this Agreement include Statewide Transportation
Improvement Formula Fund, Special Transportation Formula Fund, local funds, service contract
revenue, advertisement income, other earned income, cash donations, and other verifiable in-
kind contributions that are integral to the project budget. Recipient may not use passenger fares
as match. Administration and facility contributions are documented by percentage of contribution
directly attributed to the project.

Recipient will subtract income from fares, tickets, and passes whether pre-paid or post-paid,
from the gross operating expenses of the service. The required local match share will be
subtracted from the project expenses to determine the Agreement share of the project expense.
Generally accepted accounting principles and Recipient's accounting system determine those
costs that are to be accounted for as gross operating expenses.

Receipt of federal funds for construction projects requires that labor must be paid at the
prevailing wage as prescribed by the Davis-Bacon Act.

Downtown Transit Center Renovation

In-kind matching funding is allowed for labor and other donated equipment, materials, and

63



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35328

 

Page 8 of  8

services if otherwise allowed and not used as matching funding for any other agreement or
contract. In-kind contributions must be documented with the date and value of the contribution.
Administration and facility contributions are documented by percentage of contribution directly
attributed to the project. 

Receipt of federal funds for construction projects requires that labor must be paid at the
prevailing wage as prescribed by the Davis-Bacon Act.

Purchases or charges that are otherwise paid for in other agreements or contracts are excluded. 

4. REPORTING and INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

Vehicle Expansion
Recipient will provide reporting information as prescribed by State on the vehicles purchased
under this Agreement as long as the vehicles remains in public transportation service. 

Recipient will submit a request for reimbursement in a format provided by State. Reimbursement
requests must include the following: a cover letter and copies of all invoices associated with
expenses identified for reimbursement. and a pre-award and post-delivery certification form
documenting compliance to Altoona bus testing, Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards, Buy
America, and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirements. 

Hebo Bus Stop Design, Shelter, and Construction

Recipient will request reimbursement for covered expenses incurred during each period as
prescribed by State. Copies of invoices must be submitted for all vendor charges. In-house
charges must be documented showing time specifically associated with the project. In addition,
Recipient must provide a cover letter or summary of the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement in each Agency Periodic Report. Before and after photographs of the project are
encouraged to memorialize the achievement of deliverables and may be submitted with the final
report.

Recipient will report as prescribed by State on assets purchased or constructed under this
Agreement as long as they remain in use for public transportation service. 

Expenses incurred will not be reimbursed if the project's scope is changed or altered without the
necessary pre-approval and amendment by State. 

Downtown Transit Center Renovation

Recipient will provide reporting information as prescribed by State on structure renovated and
any purchased items to place the facility into service under this Agreement as long as they
remain in use for public transportation service. Procurement and construction files must be
retained by Recipient for as long as the structure remains in use, plus three years after disposal.

Recipient will request reimbursement for covered expenses incurred during each period as
prescribed by State. Copies of invoices must be submitted for all vendor charges. In-house
charges must be documented showing time specifically associated with the project. In addition,
Recipient must submit a cover letter or summary of the total expenses for work performed
with each reimbursement request.  Site visits or photographs of construction progress may be
required in order to receive reimbursement for project deliverables.

 
 

64


	Board Packet Cover 1.21.2026
	Agenda 1.21.2026 FINAL
	REGULAR MEETING
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	CONSENT
	ACTION ITEMS
	18. Resolution 25-36 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 3 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 35328 (Pgs. 56-64)
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	UPCOMING EVENTS

	FINAL Board Packet
	7 Financial and Grant Reports
	8.1 Service Performance Report
	Slide 1: TCTD Operations Statistics & Performance November 2025
	Slide 2: YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE
	Slide 3: IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE YTD COMPS
	Slide 4: DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE YTD COMPS
	Slide 5: PASSENGER CATEGORIES YTD COMPS

	8.2 Ridership Report
	9 2026.1.9 NWOTA Meeting Agenda
	9.1 2025.12.11 NWOTA Meeting Minutes
	10 NW Rides 2025
	11 GM Report_January 2026
	11.1 Chamber Business of Year_January 2026
	11.2 Chamber Business of Year_January 2026_2
	11.3 1.18.2026 Service Change Flyer
	11.4 New Route for Facebook 4.1pdf
	13 December 17, 2025 Board Minutes FINAL
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	Present
	TCTD Board of Directors
	Absent
	TCTD Board of Directors
	TCTD Staff
	Brian Vitulli, General Manager
	Charlene Pech, Finance Supervisor
	Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent (via Zoom)
	Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk
	Guest
	John Cline, Citizen
	4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda
	GM Vitulli presented on behalf of the District, a holiday gift to the Board members and thanked everyone for their support.
	Motion by Director McCall to Approve Announcements and Changes to Agenda.
	Seconded by Director Hanenkrat.
	5. Public & Guest Comments:
	John Cline made a public comment that the gentleman that did the Board Director training at the November meeting showed what goes into being a Director, and wanted to thank them for what they do. Thanked Brian and the staff that the District is going ...
	6. Executive Session: None.
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	7. Financial and Grant Report: Financials for October 2025 are included in the Board packet pages 1-22.
	10. NW Rides Brokerage: Statistics for September 2025 are included in the Board packet page 32-34.
	11. General Manager Report: Updates included in Board packet pages 35-36 (see GM Report in packet for details):
	a. Administration/Coordination
	b. Planning Development
	c. Grant Funding
	d. Facility/Property Development
	e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance
	12. Miscellaneous
	FS Pech stated that there are signature cards for Columbia Bank to be signed after the Board meeting.
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	ACTION ITEMS
	15. Resolution 25-32 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 5 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 34225
	Director Mcall asked why there is a difference in grant dollar amount on June 20, 2020, to current grant amount. GM Vitulli stated it is what is remaining on the grant.
	Motion by Director Johnston to Approve Resolution 25-32 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 5 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 34225. Seconded by Director McCall.
	By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler,
	Hanenkrat, Johnston, McCall
	16. Resolution 25-33 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 4 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 34242
	Motion by Director Mcall to Approve Resolution 25-33 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 4 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 34242. Seconded by Director Hanenkrat.
	By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler,
	Hanenkrat, Johnston, McCall
	17. Resolution 25-34 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 2 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 35606
	Motion by Director Mcall to Approve Resolution 25-34 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 2 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 35606. Seconded by Director Ressler.
	By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler,
	Hanenkrat, Johnston, McCall
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	18. Updated Policy Development List
	GM Vitulli stated that as discussed at last month’s Board meeting, Director McCall mentioned that there were several policies that have old effective dates on them. Policies are current but will continue to collaborate with counsel for updates. Direct...
	19. Staff Comments
	General Manager Vitulli: As stated last month, Director McCall asked for an update of House Bill 3991 and the referendum on the upcoming ballot. GM Vitulli stated that the Department of Revenue on Monday announced that the collection of new taxes in 2...
	GM Vitulli stated that with additional bus drivers hired and trained, the next shift bid happening in January will allow the District to reestablish seven-day a week service, as well as add back the discontinued services that were reduced in March and...
	Admin Assistant Brown: None.
	Finance Supervisor Pech: None
	Operations Superintendent Reed: None.
	20. Board of Directors’ Comments
	Dir. Hanenkrat: None.
	Dir. Devlin: Absent.
	Dir. Ressler: Looking forward to the ride to Lincoln City.
	Dir. Sappington: Absent.
	Dir. Johnston: Happy Holidays everyone and know it has been a couple of bumpy years but must thank GM Vitulli for hanging in and appreciate everyone for their support.
	Dir. McCall: Thank everyone for showing up in the weather we are having and with all the road closures happening. Glad to hear that none of the buses are stuck or in harms way. Tip of the hat to the drivers and to the people helping the drivers to ma...
	Chair Bean: Good news that we are going to be able to get back to seven-day service. Enjoy your holiday and be safe. GM Vitulli let everyone know about the Holiday Party tomorrow from 10am to 2pm.
	21. Adjournment: Board Chair Bean adjourned the meeting at 6:51pm.
	These minutes were approved on this 21st of January 2026.
	ATTEST:

	15 FY 2026-27 Budget Calendar
	17 26-01 DRAFT NWR Administrative Staffing Plan Amendment
	18 26-02 ODOT Section 5339 Agreement No 35328 Amendment 3
	18.1 Amendment 35328 v3 executed




